ALASKA STATE LEG SLATURE
LEG SLATI VE BUDGET AND AUDI T COW TTEE
Anchor age, Al aska
August 19, 2011
1:34 p.m

MVEMBERS PRESENT

Representative M ke Hawker, Chair

Senator Bert Stedman, Vice Chair (via tel econference)
Representative Mark Neuman

Representative Kurt O son

Representative Bill Thomas (via tel econference)
Representati ve M ke Doogan

Senat or Hollis French

Senat or Linda Menard

Senat or Thomas WAagoner (via tel econference)

MVEMBERS ABSENT

Senat or Lyman Hof f man

Representative Scott Kawasaki (alternate)
Representative Bill Stoltze (alternate)
Senator Kevin Meyer (alternate)

OTHER LEQ SLATORS PRESENT

Senat or Al an Auster man
Representati ve Max Gruenberg

COWM TTEE CALENDAR

APPROVAL COF M NUTES

REVI SED PROGRAM - LEG SLATI VE ( RPLS)

EXECUTI VE SESSI| ON

AUDI T RELEASES

AUDI TS - FOLLOW UP ON FI NDI NGS AND RECOMVENDATI ONS
AUDI T REQUEST CONSI DERATI ON

OTHER COW TTEE BUSI NESS

PREVI QUS COW TTEE ACTI ON
No previous action to record
W TNESS REG STER

DAVI D TEAL, Legislative Fiscal Analyst

BUD COWM TTEE -1- August 19, 2011



Main OFfice

Legi sl ative Finance Division

Legi sl ative Agencies & Ofices

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Provided information to the Legislative
Budget and Audit Committee regarding the RPLs before it.

CURTI S THAYER, Deputy Comm ssi oner

O fice of the Conm ssioner

Depart ment of Comrerce, Conmunity & Econom c Devel opnment ( DCCED)
Juneau, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: I ntroduced speakers during the audit follow
up on findings and recomrendati ons.

JOELLEN HANRAHAN, Director, Juneau Ofice

D vision of Admi nistrative Services

Depart ment of Commrerce, Conmunity & Econom c Devel opnent ( DCCED)
Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Ofered a report of the findings and
recomrendat i ons of DCCED.

DON HABEGER, Director

Juneau O fice

Di vi sion of Corporations, Business, and Professional Licensing
Departnment of Commerce, Conmunity & Econom c Devel opnment ( DCCED)
Juneau, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified during the follow up on findings
and recomrendati ons regardi ng occupational |icensing issues.

JOHANNA BALES, Deputy Director

Anchorage O fice

Tax Divi sion

Depart ment of Revenue (DOR)

Anchor age, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Presented a follow up on audit findings and
recommendat i ons.

TI M COTTONG M

Fi sh Group Manager

Juneau O fice

Tax Divi sion

Depart nent of Revenue

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Answer ed questions during the follow up on
findings and recommendations related to the seafood taxes and
assessnments audit.

BUD COWM TTEE - 2- August 19, 2011



PAT DAVI DSON, Legislative Auditor

Legi slative Audit Division

Legi sl ative Agencies & Ofices

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Provided information during the audit
request consideration for the Alaska Film and Television
Production I ncentives.

SENATOR JOHNNY ELLI S

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified as the requestor of the audit of
the Al aska Fil mand Tel evision Production Incentives.

RENA DELBRI DGE, Staff

Representati ve M ke Hawker

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Tal ked about a proposal to contract wth
Wod Mackenzie and Pedro Van Meurs for educational progranms to
be presented to the |egislature.

ACTI ON NARRATI VE
1:34: 47 PM

CHAIR MKE HAWKER called the Legislative Budget and Audit
Commttee neeting to order at 1:34 p.m Represent ati ves Neunman,
A son, Thomas (via teleconference), Doogan, and Hawker, and
Senators French, Menard, and Stedman (via teleconference) were
pr esent at the call to order. Senator  \Wagoner (via
tel econference) arrived as the neeting was in progress.

Approval of M nutes

1: 36: 52 PM

CHAl R HAWKER announced that the first order of business woul d be
approval of m nutes.

1:37: 04 PM

REPRESENTATI VE OLSON made a notion to approve the mnutes of
July 19, 2011. There being no objection, the mnutes from the
meeting of July 19, 2011, were approved.

Revi sed Program - Legi sl ative (RPLs)

BUD COWM TTEE - 3- August 19, 2011



1: 37: 30 PM

CHAl R HAWKER announced that the next order of business would be
t he consi derati on of RPLs.

1: 38: 59 PM

DAVI D TEAL, Legislative Fiscal Analyst, Main Ofice, Legislative
Fi nance Division, Legislative Agencies & Ofices, explained that
RPL 45-1-1012 is being submtted by the University of Alaska as
a request for $1 mllion in federal receipt authority to cover
federal aid students at the University of Al aska Fairbanks
( UAF) . He enphasized that this is a fiscal year 2011 (FY 11)

RPL. He said the noney has already been distributed to
students. Students apply for aid on their own, and the
University of Alaska Fairbanks has no control over who applies
or how nmuch noney they get. He said a simlar RPL was approved

| ast year, because federal aid is less predictable than it has
been in the past as a result of changing rules. M. Teal stated
that the alternative to approving this RPL would be to ratify
the expenditures in the FY 13 budget process.

CHAI R HAWKER concurred with M. Teal that the conmttee has the
choi ce of whether to send this RPL through the budget process as
a ratification, or to use the conmttee's authority to recognize
the increment as sonething over which the University of Al aska
had no control. He posited that the latter <choice is
appropri at e.

1:41: 51 PM

SENATOR WAGONER opi ned that there is no reason the University of
Al aska Fairbanks cannot build the acceptance of those projected
receipts into its budget and then not nmake that expenditure
until such tinme as those federal receipts have been received

He suggested the conmttee send a note to the University to that
ef fect.

1: 42: 55 PM

MR. TEAL acknow edged that is the way things used to be done
however, he noted that a couple of years ago the Ofice of
Managenent & Budget (OVB), within the Ofice of the Governor,
reduced what it considered to be surplus federal authorization
He stated, "From appearances the past couple years, they
probably dipped a little too deep in the wuniversity receipt

BUD COWM TTEE -4- August 19, 2011



authority, and they've had to come back on numerous occasions
for RPLs for additional authority."

CHAIR HAWKER said that having been a co-chair of the House
Finance Conmittee during that period, he knows the |egislature
desired to mnimze the anmount of excess federal receipt
authority as part of a "truth in budgeting" process. He
expressed appreciation for Senator Wagoner's conments. He said
he thinks this is an unanticipated |evel of receipts, and he
of fered his understanding that those present from the university
have been nodding in response to Senator \WAagoner's concerns.

SENATOR WAGONER said he understands to a point; however, he
stated that being that restrictive on the request for the
authorization to receive receipts that are not expected causes
nore work. He said as a past business officer he did not allow
any expenditures to go until a receipt was received. He
concluded, "I think we're kind of overreaching by restricting
the ability to budget for receipts that way."

1:44: 53 PM

MR. TEAL said RPL 45-1-1013 is simlar to 45-1-1012, except that
it pertains to the University of Al aska Anchorage, and the
request is for $870, 000.

CHAI R HAWKER noted that Chris Christianson is present and is now
enpl oyed by the University of Al aska.

1:45: 54 PM

MR. TEAL said RPL 2-2-0022 is a request by the Ofice of Public
Advocacy, within the Departnment of Adm nistration, for $200, 000
in federal receipt authority to cover two, $100,000 grants for
t he purpose of paying student | oans made to public defenders and
prosecutors enployed in Al aska. He said although the grants are
for two different federal fiscal years, all the noney will be
available in the state's FY 12. He said the programis new to
Al aska, and DOA expects to include a request for a simlar grant
in the FY 13 budget.

1:46: 40 PM
SENATOR FRENCH noted that although the noney is ainmed at public
def enders and prosecutors, the request cones from Ofice of

Publ i c Advocacy (CPA). He asked if that is any indication of
where the noney will go.

BUD COWM TTEE - 5- August 19, 2011



MR. TEAL offered his wunderstanding that there was sone
di scussi on about where the noney would go before OPA was chosen.

He said within the RPL is a process by which the noney will be
split fairly between |awers enployed by the Departnent of
Adm ni stration, the Departnent of Law, and local and tribal
gover nment enpl oyees. In response to a followup question, he
confirmed that a small board will award the noney.

1:47:41 PM

MR. TEAL stated that RPL 5-2-0028 is a request by the Archives
Allocation wthin the Departnent of Education and Early
Devel opnment's libraries and nuseuns appropriation. The request
is for [$109,267] in federal receipts "with the purpose to clean
up records associated with the Exxon Valdez oil spill." M .
Teal said one minor conplication with this RPL is that the noney
requested is for both FY 12 and FY 13; however, noney cannot be
carried forward into FY 13. He said based on the information
provided by the departnent, the Legislative Finance D vision
believes that the RPL can be reduced to $51,521 - the anpunt the
departnment says it needs for FY 12 - and then another request
woul d have to be made for FY 13. He said no harm would be done
by approving the whole anobunt of the RPL; it would "overstate”
t he budget and "give them authorization that they are unlikely
to spend.” He summarized that the comrittee has the option of
reducing the RPL or leaving it as is.

1:49: 04 PM

CHAIR HAWKER announced that in his 9 years serving on the
Legi sl ative Budget and Audit Committee, the conmmttee has only
approved the anendnents to the budget year in process. He
further clarified that the request for the additional FY13
anount can be addressed in the ordinary budget process.

CHAI R HAWKER rmade a notion to amend RPL 06-2-0028, to change the
amount to $51,600, which he said the Legislative Finance
Division has indicated is the amount of the RPL appropriate to
FY 12. The remaining anount, which woul d be dispersed in FY 13,
would go through a normal Ilegislative review process in next
year's budget cycle. He announced that hearing no objection

the notion to anend RPL 06-2-0028 was adopt ed.

1: 50: 05 PM

BUD COWM TTEE - 6- August 19, 2011



MR. TEAL confirned that the anount rounded to $51,600 is easier
for the division to track in the budget.

CHAIR HAWKER said he gives the division the latitude to round
t hat nunber out to whatever nunber is appropriate.

1: 50: 28 PM

MR. TEAL relayed that RPL 6-2-0088 is a request for $258,494 in
federal American Recovery and Reinvestnent Act (ARRA) receipts.
The request is being made by the Division of Child Services'
Infant Learning program wthin the Departnent of Health &
Soci al Servi ces. He said the noney would be used to conplete
the inplenentation of a technical assistance nodel for young
children at risk and to support wap-around services for very
young children who are subjected to abuse, neglect, and donestic
vi ol ence.

1:51:13 PM

MR. TEAL noved on to RPL 6-2-0089, which is a request for
$268,000 in Mental Health Trust Authority Authorized Receipts
(MHTAAR) made by the Division of Behavioral Health, Psychiatric
Emergency Services, wthin the Departnent of Health & Soci al
Ser vi ces. The nmoney wll fund evaluation, stabilization, and
treatment services. M. Teal related that this noney is
avai | abl e because the departnent did not spend the $268, 000 of
t he $300, 000 authorized in [fiscal year] 2011, and the trust has
now cone forward and authorized use of the unused FY 11 noney in
FY 12.

1: 52: 07 PM

MR. TEAL stated that RPL 6-2-0090 is a request for $344,179 in
MHTAAR nade by Public Health, Health Planning Systens
Devel opnment, within the Departnment of Health & Social Services.
The noney is for the Sharp Program a |oan repaynent program for

health care professionals. He said apparently the overlap
between the state and federal fiscal years caused sone problem
in aligning the fund sources. The result was that the trust

recei pts appropriated for this purpose in FY 11 were not fully
spent; therefore, the trust has authorized the unspent bal ance
to be wused in FY 12, and the departnment 1is requesting
aut horization to do that in this RPL.

CHAI R HAWKER asked M. Teal if, other than the one RPL that was
anmended, the Legislative Finance Conmttee has identified any

BUD COWM TTEE -7- August 19, 2011



substantive or technical concerns that of which the commttee
shoul d be awar e.

MR. TEAL answered no.

1:53:41 PM

REPRESENTATI VE OLSON nade a notion that the conmttee approve
RPL 45-1-1012; RPL 45-1-1013; RPL 02-2-0022; RPL 05-2-0028, as
amended; RPL 06-2-0088; RPL 06-2-0089; and RPL 06-2-0090. There
bei ng no objection, the RPLs were approved.

Executi ve Sessi on

1:56:11 PM

CHAIR HAWKER announced that the commttee would next go into
executive session.

1: 56: 22 PM

REPRESENTATI VE OLSON nmade a notion to nove to executive session
for the purpose of hearing confidential audit reports under AS
24. 20. 301.

CHAI R HAWKER called the Legislative Budget and Audit Conmmittee
back to order. Present at the <call back to order were
Representatives Neuman, QO son, Thomas (via teleconference),
Doogan, and Hawker, and Senators French, Menard, and Wagoner
(via tel econference).

Rel ease of Audits

CHAl R HAWKER announced that the next order of business would be
the rel ease of audits.

3:15:10 PM

REPRESENTATIVE OLSON made a notion for the following final
audits to be released to the public for response: Departnent of

Adm ni strati on, Enterprise Technol ogy Service Di vi si on,
Tel econmuni cati on  Services, Sel ected |ssues; Department  of
Revenue, Seafood Industry Taxes and Assessnent Revenues;

Department of Commerce, Community & Economic Devel opnent,
D vision of Corporations, Business, and Professional Licensing
Sel ect COccupational Licensing and Enforcenent |ssues; Departnment
of Natural Resources, Alaska Seismc Hazard Safety Conmm ssion;

BUD COWM TTEE - 8- August 19, 2011



and Legislative Affairs Agency, State of Alaska's Ofice of the
Onbudsman, Managenent QOperations Review. There being no
objection, the audits were released to the public.

3:16: 09 PM

REPRESENTATI VE OLSON nade a notion for the following prelimnary
audit of the Departnent of Commerce, Comunity & Economc

Devel opnent , Di vi si on of Cor por at i ons, Busi ness, and
Prof essional Licensing, State Mdical Board to be released to
the agency for response. There being no objection, it was so
or der ed.

Audits - Foll ow Up on Findi ngs and Reconmendati ons

3:17: 06 PM

CHAIR HAWKER explained that since two of the aforenentioned
audits that were released included substantial findings, he had
requested the relevant departnent discuss follow up and
recommendati ons pertaining to the occupational |icensing issues
and to the [seafood] audits and audit practices. He then
invited the Departnent of Commerce, Conmunity & Econonic
Devel opnent to provi de coments.

3:18: 02 PM

CURTI S THAYER, Deputy Conm ssioner, Ofice of the Comm ssioner
Departnment of  Commerce, Community & Economic Devel opnent
(DCCED), introduced JoEllen Hanrahan and Don Habeger.

CHAIR HAWKER related concerns about the ongoing deficiencies

regarding licensing and enforcenent issues. He nentioned
constituent concerns regarding accounting managenent practices
in operating those boards. He nentioned the reoccurring issue
of indirect cost allocations. He asked for thoughts on the

audit and the director's hopes for the future.
3:19:41 PM

JOELLEN  HANRAHAN, Di rector, Juneau O fi ce, Division of
Adm ni strative Services, Departnent of Commerce, Conmmunity &
Econom ¢ Devel opnent (DCCED), said the sanme issues that were
before the division when she was its director in 2004 and 2005
were still issues upon her return in 2009. She said she would
outline those issues and talk about the collaborative effort
being put forth to address them She enphasi zed the positive

BUD COWM TTEE - 9- August 19, 2011



i npact that M. Haberger has had on the effort since his arriva
to the departnent in July 2010.

M5. HANRAHAN said one issue that has been "cleaned up" is in
regard to personal services. She said she has established a
group addressing fees and finances; has allocated an additiona
position to this effort; and has reclassified a position for
training and quality control related to "the sixteen positions

that would be inpacted by any financial activity" in the
division. She relayed that she has recruited an accountant with
a background in allocations. She said she has also begun
recruitnent t oward havi ng an overal | cor porations and
professional licensing review of positions. She said the
division is in the l|ast phase of validating and verifying
standard fi nanci al reports used in devel opi ng fees

Furthernore, the division has been working diligently wth
regard to how and where fees are bei ng charged.

3:24: 08 PM

CHAI R HAWKER noted for the record that M. Hanrahan had just
shown the conmttee "a very | arge Excel spreadsheet.”

3:24:39 PM

M5. HANRAHAN said overall the division is happy that the
auditors are providing support for these issues to be corrected.
She said the division is wrking diligently to ensure that the
next round of fee adjustnents wll be a nore equitable
allocation of the admnistrative costs, and standardized
expenditure reports will be used to put those out.

CHAI R HAWKER said these issues have been a recurring theme for
the last nine years, and he asked what is being done differently
now t o address these issues.

M5. HANRAHAN said the first difference is the collaborative

effort that is "comng fromthe top down." Another difference
is the addition of M. Habeger, who has seen the problens and
devised a strategy to address them over tine. She said M.

Habeger has restructured positions in personnel and changed the
way the division works.

3:27: 09 PM

BUD COWM TTEE -10- August 19, 2011



CHAI R HAWKER asked if M. Habeger has sufficient resources with
whi ch to acconplish the goal of inproving the operability of the
Di vi sion of Corporations, Business, and Professional Licensing.

3:27:29 PM

DON HABEGER, Director, Juneau Ofice, D vision of Corporations,
Busi ness, and Professional Licensing, Departnment of Commerce,
Community & Econom c Devel opnent (DCCED), responded that he does
not know how to answer t hat guestion at this tinme.
Notwi t hstanding that, he said he would share what he knows to
date and explain how managenent was changed. Some issues, he
said, are being reviewed with "a finer-toothed conb."

MR. HABECER relayed that there used to be a pyramd style

managenent, which seenmed to <create "choke points" in the
managenent deci si on-nmaki ng process and reduced the division's
"customer service ability." He said changes were nmade to
address this problem One change is that there is now an
executive team conprised of : program coordi nators for
pr of essi onal and business |icensing, a traditional chi ef

investigator, and a new admnistrative officer who has been
instructed to work wth M. Hanrahan and the Division of
Adm ni strative Services. The executive team not only nanages

but also is asked to be forward thinking. M. Habeger said
there is also a senior nanagenent team currently conprised of
five board executives, with a sixth soon to join them when a new

CPA board executive is hired. The senior managenent team he
said, is instructed to look at where the division is today,
define problens, and manage to address the problens. He said
resources are still being assessed.

3:30: 30 PM

MR. HABEGER, in response to Chair Hawker, said he generally
agrees with the concerns raised and recomendati ons given in the
auditor's report.

3:30:47 PM

M5. HANRAHAN, in response to Representative Doogan, said the
division is tackling the many problens it faces one at a tine.
She expressed hope the problens will be taken care of in a year,
some within the year

3:31:42 PM

BUD COWM TTEE -11- August 19, 2011



MR. HABECGCER said he is hopeful that there wll be vast
i nprovenents in a year. Regarding resources, he said the
average nunber of cases that are brought to the investigative
unit in a year's time is 45; in FY 11, that nunmber was 1,120

whi ch amounts to approxinmately 70 cases per investigator. G ven
the current information, M. Habeger said he did not yet know
how to increase efficiency, better manage those [cases], and
i nprove the new database, which was supposed to answer a nunber
of questions better in FY 11 and address new problens reveal ed
through the audit within 12 nonths.

3:33:44 PM

REPRESENTATI VE DOOGAN conmmented on the length of tinme that this
probl em has exi sted. He said the legislature needs to know if
nore noney needs to be spent in this direction, or it wll spend
noney el sewhere. He enphasized that today's neeting is an
opportunity for the division representatives present to let the
| egi sl ature know what part it can play in solving the problem

3:35:18 PM

MR. THAYER said the Division of Corporations, Business, and
Prof essional Licensing has had the attention of the Ofice of
the Conmm ssioner for the past year and has had the cooperation
of that office. He said the goal for progress is set in tw- to

t hree-nonth i ncrenents. He related that some of the problens,
such as cost allocation and fee scheduling, wll require review
by outside contractors. Al though "that project” was actually

undertaken in 1998 and was supposed to be updated in 2008,
issues with corporation staff resulted in "an agreenent to
di sagree” and "they wal ked off the job." He noted that it was
not the contractor's fault. Still, the departnment had to work
with the human resource system to take address sone personnel
issues and bring in a new team to address the problem He
expressed hope that the departnment can work with the Legislative
Budget and Audit Committee and return with a progress report in
si X nont hs.

MR. THAYER stated that progress has been made regardi ng annua
reports, which are required by statute but have not been nade
for the past eight years. He said the reports began in May and
t he department has collected $600,000 from corporations that it
had been previously ignoring. He said, "Some of this is triaged
as we go." He said the departnent has begun a nore proactive
method of nonitoring business |licenses; it now sends out
rem nders, for exanple.

BUD COWM TTEE -12- August 19, 2011



REPRESENTATI VE DOOGAN said he is not asking for mracles; he
just wants to see reasonabl e progress bei ng nmade.

3:38:14 PM

CHAI R HAWKER requested an update from the departnent before the
next |egislative session and he said he would be happy to work
with the departnent toward that end.

MR. HARBECER agreed that woul d be feasible.
3:38: 57 PM

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG remarked that there seem to be new
i ssues today. Therefore, he requested that the individual
problenms wth broad resolutions and tinefranes be submtted by
the departnent in witing.

CHAlI R HAWKER sai d that could be taken into consideration.
MR. THAYER said, "W are fully supportive.”
3:41: 08 PM

CHAI R HAWKER turned next to the Departnent of Revenue's follow
up on audit findings and reconmendations. He offered his
understanding that Johanna Bales is the current acting tax
director. He said the subject at hand pertains to DOR s ability
to exercise due diligence in the admnistration of tax |laws and
regulations and the proper col | ecti on, accounti ng, and
managenent of the state's various revenue statutes. He said the
audit just released has indicated a nunber of specific concerns
regarding fish tax receipts. He said fish tax is a snmall

portion of the state's revenue, but simlar issues have been
identified with the state's nost inportant revenue sources: oil

and gas. Chair Hawker noted that Representative Al an Austerman

who requested this audit, was present at the neeting. He said
he would like to hear the departnment's general response to the
audit just released, as well as sonme assurance that the

departnment is headed toward a sol ution
3:43:21 PM
JOHANNA BALES, Deputy Director, Anchorage Ofice, Tax D vision

Department of Revenue (DOR), reported that the division was
pl eased with this audit report as conpared to findings on sone

BUD COWM TTEE -13- August 19, 2011



other tax types. She said this program has autonmated systens in
place that help in examnation and processing of returns.
Furthernore, over the last couple of years the departnent has
put in place a system of filing and permtting that is shared
with the Al aska Departnent of Fish & Gane. She said the program
allows those in the fisheries industry to [pay their taxes] on
line, and she offered her understanding that over 70 percent of
the applicants use the system Further, the division has
automated tax returns, which will notify the division if soneone
has not filed or has filed incorrectly.

MS. BALES said this particular audit focused on the division's
audit program in which the representatives fromthe division go
out in the field to audit taxpayers. Currently, that job is
done by one person whose position was granted by the |egislature
in 2004, at the tine that the sal non product devel opnent (SPD)
tax credit was put into effect. She said the programrelated to

that tax credit is decent; however, it is lacking regulation.
Ms. Bales opined that it was remss of the division to mss the
t wo- year sunset provision expiration and fail to adopt
regul ati ons. She informed the conmittee that there are witten
draft regulations that have been vetted through the first |eve
of review and which wll be ready to be examned by the
Departnment of Law (DOL) at the end of this nonth, after which
they will be released for public coment. Concurrently, the
division is addressing ot her i ssues related to those

regul ati ons, which neans the project has ball ooned.

M5. BALES expressed appreciation for the legislative audit
because sonetinmes the division develops a narrow vision of the

prograns, especially when there are limted resources. She
stated that the division will follow up the audit by naking an
effort to use the fish tickets nore actively, as well as

[focusing on] the core report. She further thanked those in the
| egi sl ature who supported funding a revenue managenent system
for the departnent, which she opined will help in managi ng data
and revenue.

3:47: 04 PM

REPRESENTATI VE AUSTERMAN expressed concern that DOR is not
putting enough enphasis on the audit of the tax returns and what
the processors are filing with the State of Al aska. He offered
his understanding that the departnent does not audit any of
those returns; therefore, the departnent has no idea whether the
filing is being done correctly or not. He related that he has
talked wth a nunber of organizations, including the Al aska

BUD COWM TTEE -14- August 19, 2011



Seaf ood Marketing Institute, but no one can say distinctly how
much fishernmen are being paid. He said there is no way for the
departnment to audit if it does not know what fishernen are being
pai d. He opined that while fish tax is small conpared to oil
and gas taxes, it is still an inportant part of the state's
econony. Representative Austerman then asked Ms. Bales if she
has any thoughts related to inproving what the division is
doi ng.

M5. BALES replied that the division needs nore resources in
order to get its job done. In ternms of having automated
systens, she noted that the oil and gas production tax is an
entirely manual system as well as the biggest risk area because
of the anount of revenue involved. She pointed out that in the
past several years there has been the inplenentation of new tax
types, such as the tax on commercial passenger vessels,
ganbling, and vehicle rental, and fees on tires, and audit
resources have been wused to help develop those prograns.
Al t hough the division concurs with the audit findings, M. Bales
opined that there are not enough resources available to work on
the fish tax. She expressed hope that as the division goes
forward in automating other systens, it will be able to place
nore focus on auditing than on program inplenentation and
t racki ng.

3:50:49 PM

REPRESENTATI VE AUSTERVAN questioned whether only reallocating
assets in the departnent is the best plan. He explained that he
is frustrated by Ms. Bales' response because nowhere within it
has she indicated that the division is |ooking at solutions
ot her than increased funding.

M5. BALES said Representative Austerman's point is well taken
but reiterated that it would be nice to have nobre resources.
She offered her belief that regul ati ons woul d hel p.

REPRESENTATI VE AUSTERVAN said the regulations are only on the
tax credit, and he clarified that he is referring to the audit
of the tax itself.

M5. BALES replied, "Well, actually ... the regulations also dea
with sone of the anmbiguities in the tax itself. So, we're
working on that as well." She offered her understanding that
the ability to look at the fish tickets in the core reports wll
actually help in "identifying people to go out and audit.” She
relayed that even wth only one auditor in the field the

BUD COWM TTEE - 15- August 19, 2011



division will be expanding into audits of things other than the
credits. She noted that the division also uses its tax
exam ners in other prograns. Now that on line licensing and
processing in the automated system is "pretty much conplete for
those tax types,” the division can use resources of those tax
technicians to help the auditor.

REPRESENTATI VE AUSTERVAN asked whether the departnent is taking
the tinme to figure out how to bridge confidentiality issues and
dealing with governnent-to-governnent relationship, in order to
have the avail abl e basic information before conducting an audit.

3:54:48 PM

TIM COTTONA M Fish Goup Manager, Juneau Ofice, Tax D vision,
Depart ment of Revenue, responded that the division has schedul ed
meetings with ADF&G to discuss the ability to have direct upload
of that departnent's fish ticket data. Currently, the division
requests a fish ticket report from ADF& on a case-by-case
basis, which he indicated is demanding on ADF&G s resources.
Regarding federal information, he said he asked |egal counse

whet her there was any way DOR could have access to "their"
transfer information for at-sea processors that are transferring
in state, and he found out that not only does the |law not allow
this because DOR is not directly involved in the licensing of
fish and gane, it also does not allow DOR to enter into any
menor andum of understanding or "any other type of an outside
arrangenment that would authorize us access.” He stated that
from that point the division perforned a conpliance project,
pulling the federal permts from a database and sending out
letters to all those known to be processing in federal waters.
The result was a verification that the najority of [processors]
were filing landing returns, while many had filed permts they
never used. He said the departnent would have to request
through the state's congressional delegation that the state's
| aws be changed in order for DOR to have access to federal data.

REPRESENTATI VE AUSTERVAN said the federal fishery off the state
of Alaska is the biggest wld stock fishery in the US., and he
said he would be interested to know if "we're getting our fair

share.” He said he would not hesitate to ask the congressiona
del egation to "look at the Magnusson Stevens Act and figure out
how to do that,”" but he needs to hear from DOR that the

departnment would like that information and is unable to get it
on its own.

3:57:48 PM

BUD COWM TTEE -16- August 19, 2011



REPRESENTATI VE AUSTERVAN said prior to statehood the raw fish
tax was 3 percent as it is today. He asked if DOR believes it
is the departnent's place to consider whether the 3 percent tax
remai ns appropriate in 2011

M5. BALES answered that it 1is nore appropriate for the
| egi sl ature to approach the departnment if it desires a change in
the tax rate; the departnment adm nisters the tax.

3:59:41 PM

CHAI R HAWKER pointed out that the auditor's recomendation did
not focus on expansion, but rather diversity; not whether there
are enough people, but whether those people are being depl oyed
in the nost efficient manner possible. He said the committee
understands clearly through the auditor's report that some years
ago the departnment picked up one position in fisheries through a

fiscal note on a devel opnent credit. However, the question is
where, in terns of tax laws, the state can reap the nost
benefit. He said he wants to know that that was clear to M.
Bal es.

M5. BALES agreed that the division needs to diversify its
audi t s. She tal ked about the on line |icensing and autonated
system which is sonething that both M. Cottongim and the
audi tor have worked on together and has added efficiencies to
the program She concluded, "Dealing with sone of those
conpliance issues first, then doing the "SPD' credit audit, and
now absolutely to diversify - we agree with that conpletely and
will do that in the near future."

CHAIR HAWKER then inquired as to how the division is doing in
terms of filling positions.

VB. BALES answered that the division <continues to have

difficulties in recruiting at the higher Ievel; however, it
recently filled both its comercial analyst positions. The
appl i cant pool has been better at the entry |evel, perhaps due
to the econony, she ventured. Finding people with oil and gas
experience and tax experience still proves difficult, she said.

CHAI R HAWKER remarked that that causes a nmjor inpedinment in the
governor's plan to bring forward requests for tax reform and
policy changes. He said there nust be a reason that the
division is having difficulty in filling those positions, and
the division nust cone to the legislature "forcefully" to

BUD COWM TTEE -17- August 19, 2011



explain what needs to be done, because the stalemate cannot
conti nue.

MS. BALES responded, "Point well taken."
4:03: 03 PM

REPRESENTATI VE AUSTERVMAN said one of the notes in the report
dealt with year-end bonuses. He asked how DOR knows that when
soneone is paid a bonus at the end of the year, he/she has
actually filed a report.

MR. COTTONG M answered that the division has no way to know.

REPRESENTATI VE AUSTERMAN said if the division has any ideas for
a solution, it would be good for the legislature to hear about
t hem

MR. COITONG M opined that this will require a partnership with
sone of the fishernan associ ati ons.

M5. BALES, in response to Chair Hawker, confirnmed that DOR has
information sharing agreenents with the Internal Revenue Service
(IRS); however, the level of detail received through that
agreenent does not provide enough to determ ne those types of
bonuses that are paid.

4:04: 56 PM

REPRESENTATI VE DOOGAN concluded that the division is saying
people are getting nore noney and being allowed to voluntarily
get taxed on it.

M5. BALES responded that that is true. She said one of the
fundamental problems with tax enforcenent, including individua
incone taxes paid to the governnment, is "a lot of it is
vol untary reporting."

REPRESENTATI VE DOOGAN di sagreed and pointed out that the federal
government has the ability to "look at everything you' ve ever
gotten,” although the state does not have that ability. He
recommended that the way the state determ nes how nmuch noney
peopl e are naki ng shoul d be reexani ned.

4:06: 21 PM

BUD COWM TTEE - 18- August 19, 2011



REPRESENTATI VE AUSTERMAN posited that there is nore work to be
done.

CHAI R HAWKER reiterated that DOR needs to communicate clearly to
the legislature when it needs that body's authority.

4:06:51 PM

SENATOR MENARD suggested that every commercial vessel could post
a lamnated sign stating that any bonuses received nust be
reported for tax purposes. She said the bonus will not be cash

but will be a check. She further suggested that a [vessel
owner] who does not post [the sign] should be fined.

MR COTTONG M clarified that it is not the fishernen who receive
t he bonuses but rather the processors who are paying it who need
to report that paynent. He said this is a "weird tax," and the
division relies heavily upon processors to "do the right thing
and report correctly.”

SENATOR MENARD categorized it as an ethics issue.

4:10: 41 PM
M5. BALES said she thinks everyone is in agreenent. She said
the division wuld I|ike nore enforcenent tools, and she

acknowl edged Senator Menard's idea of requiring the recipient of
t he bonus to report.

REPRESENTATI VE NEUMAN nentioned that he is 1looking at the
nunbers and pondering the possibilities.

Audi t Reqguests

4:12:55 PM

CHAl R HAWKER announced that the next order of business was the
consideration of an audit request nade by Senator Johnny Ellis
for Alaska Fil mand Tel evi sion Production |Incentives.

4:14:28 PM

PAT DAVI DSON, Legislative Auditor, Legislative Audit Division,
Legislative Agencies & Ofices, explained that a financial
conpliance audit is an audit primarily of financial activities
of an operation, in this case Alaska Film and Television
Production Incentives. Under statute, before a paynent can be

BUD COWM TTEE -19- August 19, 2011



made there nust be a certification that the expenditures were
reviewed by an Alaska certified public accountant (CPA) to
ensure that those expenditures are eligible. The division would
ook for that certification in addition to review ng whether
there was adequate support for the anpunt of the credit issued.
Ms. Davidson said with a performance audit, the focus would be
on what a CPA was |ooking at and whether or not it 1is
sufficiently robust to ensure that the expenditures really are
el i gi bl e. The performance audit is a little nore in depth and
guestions if what occurred is appropriate for the circunstances.
In response to Chair Hawker, she confirnmed that consideration is
also given to what is in the best interest of the state, as
defined under statute.

4:16: 23 PM

SENATOR JOHNNY ELLIS, Alaska State Legislature, stated that he
made the request for both the financial conpliance audit and the
performance audit based on input fromthe public and a couple of
| egi sl ators. He expressed hope that M. Davidson would be able
to tell the committee what the tinmeline would be for a financial
conpliance audit; he said it would be helpful to have those
results intime for the next |egislative session.

SENATOR ELLIS said on the larger, nore conprehensive audit only
$8.6 mllion of the $100 mllion of the five-year project on
film and television production incentives have gone out the
door, and the O fice of the Governor has asked if the intention
is to do the conprehensive audit on that $8.6 mllion. He said
he would support that if that is the way the committee would
like to proceed. He noted that the Ofice of the Governor asked
if there may be a preference to audit $40-$50 million.

SENATOR ELLIS informed the commttee that "Everybody Loves
Whal es” - a multi-mllion dollar production - has not yet been
approved for <credits, although the production has been pre-
approved and will premere on January 12, [2012]. Therefore, if
t he conprehensive audit is done now, it will be done on the $8.6
mllion, and Senator Ellis said the commttee "may be m ssing
some of the other ... information that you m ght want to have."
He said he supports the audits either way.

CHAI R HAWKER questioned the spending of noney before review ng
the program and he noted that the program has been in place for
four years. He asked whether it would be premature to | ook at
the operations of that programand at a performance audit.

BUD COWM TTEE - 20- August 19, 2011



4:20:09 PM

M5. DAVIDSON said the Legislative Audit Division's priorities
are: things that have statutory deadlines, which includes the
conprehensi ve annual report and the statewi de single audit; then
the audits in order of their approval by the Legislative Budget

and Audit Commttee. She said currently, the conprehensive
annual report is due on Decenber 15 and the single audit will be
due the end of March [2012]. In the queue ahead of this audit,
she said, is a request by Representative Chenault related to
virus-free sweet potatoes. The audit request being nade by
Senator Ellis would be next in line, she said, unless the
commttee directs her to change the order. She said in prior

conversations with Senator Ellis and his staff, he indicated his
priority would be to get the financial conpliance review done
first, which she said is smaller in scope than the performance
audit. She said in the best-case scenario, there would be staff
avai l able in Decenber, and she estinated it would take a couple
of nonths to get done. Therefore, after final reviews, the
conpletion date may be as early as March [2012]. In terns of
the performance audit, she said the other conplicating factor is
that as nost of the division's staff conplete the statew de
single audit in February [2012], there will be six boards and
comm ssions up for renewal next year, and under statute, they
take priority. Therefore, she estimated that it would be Apri
or May [of 2012] before the division could start on the
performance audit.

M5. DAVIDSON, regarding timng, said she does not know if there
woul d be a substantial inpact if only a small percentage of
t hose dollars had gone out. She said that it could be by the
time the performance audit is up and going, sone of those
credits would start processing for "Everybody Loves Whales."
She said the performance audit mght not be made public unti
the | egislature comes back in 2013.

4:23:53 PM

SENATOR FRENCH said he is in favor of noving ahead on both the
financi al conpliance and performance audits.

CHAI R HAVKER concurr ed.
4:24: 04 PM

REPRESENTATI VE NEUMAN opined that it is inmportant to include the
conprehensi ve performance audit to ensure that things are being

BUD COWM TTEE -21- August 19, 2011



done the right way. That audit will give the commttee baseline
information to use in follow up consideration.

4:24:51 PM

SENATOR ELLIS stated that it is also his desire to nove ahead
with both audits. He explained that he had felt obligated to
share his conversation with the Ofice of Governor about the
program

4:25:28 PM

CHAI R HAWKER asked if there were any further comrents.

4:25:48 PM

REPRESENTATI VE OLSON nmade a notion to approve Senator ElIlis'
request for a financial conpliance and performance audit of the
Al aska Film and Television Production Incentive program There
bei ng no objection, the audit requests were approved.

O her Comm ttee Business

4:26:18 PM

CHAIR HAWKER announced that the commttee would hear other
busi ness.

CHAIR HAWKER said one of the biggest issues before the
| egi slature has been the continued debate regarding Al aska's
fiscal regime. He said he has been in prelimnary conversations
with Wod Mckenzie and Pedro Van Meurs to present educationa
prograns to the |egislature. He said he will be asking for the
commttee's authority to contract with both these agencies for
an anount not to exceed the statutory limt of $50,000.

4:28:09 PM

RENA DELBRI DGE, Staff, Representative M ke Hawker, Alaska State
Legi sl ature, stated that currently Wod Mckenzie has a
petrol eum economcs course that it presents worldw de, and it
would tailor that to Alaska's interest. The proposal would have
Wod Mackenzie and Pedro van Meurs conme to Alaska for two ful
days.

M5. DELBRIDGE said the topics covered by Wod Mckenzie during
the first day would include: how oil and gas conpanies globally

BUD COWM TTEE -22- August 19, 2011



make investnent decisions, both in ternms of exploration and
productions; the super nmgjor, nmmjor, and independent oil
conpani es; the characteristics of varying jurisdictions taken
into account when naking investnent decisions; the concept of
fair share in governnent take; and an overview of the global oil
and gas industry and the <changes in considerations of
i nvest ments. On the second day, she related, Wod Mackenzie
woul d cover the follow ng: case studies related to Alaska's
current situation; the world view of Alaska in terns of
i nvestnment attractiveness; a discussion of what sort of
jurisdictions around the world should be considered part of
Al aska's peer group in ternms of international conpetiveness and
investnment capital; and how conpanies may or may not judge
Al aska as conpetitive.

4:31:35 PM

VB. DELBRIDGE nentioned a nulti-volume product that was
purchased by the commttee from M. Van Meurs' corporation. She
said Representative Hawker would like M. Van Meurs to present
his conclusions in a format that policy makers in Alaska wll
find useful and to share his expertise regarding what 1is
happeni ng around the worl d. She said discussions are under way
with M. Van Meurs to see if he would be available to conme give
a presentation regarding the strengths and weaknesses of
Al aska's fiscal system

4:33: 06 PM

CHAIR HAWKER said he has prelimnary commtnments from Wod
Mackenzie for a presentation in early Novenber [2011], and is
working to schedule M. Van Meurs sonetine before the next
| egislative session, with a focus on creating a schedule that
will work for the maxi mum nunber of |egislators possible. He
stated, "Each of these entities has ..., within the |egislature,
their own fans and their own detractors, but they have been the
two major sources of information and education that | Kkeep
seeing consistently referred to from both the House and the
Senate. " He said this would be an opportunity for |egislators
to have one-on-one interaction in an educational forum

4:35: 07 PM

SENATOR MENARD said there wll be other <costs involved in
addition to the cost of bringing both speakers to Alaska, for
exanple, the cost of legislators attending. Therefore, she

BUD COWM TTEE -23- August 19, 2011



asked if it would be possible to bring one of the speakers up
and then wait until another tine to bring up the other one.

4:37:09 PM

MS. DELBRIDCGE clarified that the cost would be $50,000 for each
speaker . Regarding Wod Mckenzie, she said, "It's nore
[economical] to bring themup once for a larger group and really
have an intense couple of days."

CHAI R HAWKER pointed out that [under statute] this anount of
noney being requested cannot be exceeded. He said the cost for
Wod MKenzie would conme close to $50,000, while the cost for

bringing M. Van Meurs would be substantially |ess overall. He
enphasi zed that the need for information right now is paranmount,
and providing information appropriately costs noney. He said

the Legislative Budget and Audit Commttee has the statutory
budget authority to do this sort of thing.

4:40: 25 PM

M5. DELBRIDGE, in response to Senator Menard said the intent is
to bring Whod Mackenzie and Pedro Van Meurs up separately. She
reiterated the tentative tinmeframe previously described by Chair
Hawker .

SENATOR MENARD opined that it would be "beyond adequate” to
offer a scal ed-down version of this plan, because 90 percent of
the legislators would find one full day of this information
val uabl e.

4:42:50 PM

SENATOR FRENCH said he would agree to $50,000 for two people
from Wod Mackenzie for two days, but not for one person for two
days.

CHAI R HAWKER reiterated that he does not think the amunt would
go near $50,000 for M. Van Meurs, unless there were to be
further testinmony from M. Van Meurs during the |legislative
sessi on. He recollected that the last time the legislature
contracted with M. Van Meurs, his day rates were $3,500, plus
out - of - pocket expenses.

SENATOR FRENCH said he thinks it would be worth it. He opi ned

that even if the information is beyond what any one person can
absorb, there are 60 |egislators and their staff anbng which the

BUD COWM TTEE - 24- August 19, 2011



informati on woul d be spread. He said he supports Chair Hawker's
effort.

CHAIR HAWKER reiterated that the proposal would be conpliant
with state procurenent. He stated his intent to be as frugal as
possi bl e.

4:44: 40 PM

SENATOR MENARD offered her understanding that the trave
expenses, housing, and per diem for the legislators who would
attend woul d not be covered in the $50, 000.

4:45:19 PM
REPRESENTATI VE DOOGAN said this sounds |ike a good deal.
4:45: 46 PM

REPRESENTATIVE OLSON made a notion and asked for unaninous
consent that the chair of the Legislative Budget and Audit
Conmittee be authorized to enter into a contract wth Wod
Mackenzie to conduct a program on petroleum fiscal systens at a
cost not to exceed $50, 000. There being no objection, that
aut hority was granted.

4:46:21 PM

REPRESENTATI VE OLSON nade a notion and asked for unani nbus
consent that the chair of the Legislative Budget and Audit
Comm ttee be authorized to enter into a contract with Pedro Van
Meurs to conduct a program on petroleum fiscal systens not to
exceed $50, 000. There being no objection, that authority was
gr ant ed.

4:47.14 PM
ADJ OURNNMENT
There being no further business before the conmttee, the

Legi sl ative Budget and Audit Committee neeting was adjourned at
4:47 p. m

BUD COWM TTEE -25- August 19, 2011



